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ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

FOR CONSULTANT TO PREPARE THE ROBERTSON TO MILLS TRAIL EXTENSION PLAN  
RFP No. MPO 21-02 

 
for the Casper Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

 
ADDENDUM DATE: March 8, 2021 

 
This addendum to the Request for Proposal is hereby made a part of the Contract Documents for the 
above titled project, to the same extent as though it were originally contained therein. 
 
                                                                                                                                             

Questions and Answers 
 

Question 1: Given the conditions presented by the COVID pandemic, will you accept electronic 
submittals? 

 
Answer: For many reasons, not just COVID, we wish we could accept everything 

electronically.  However, we do need to have at least one hard copy for archival 
purposes, and the separate pricing bid needs to be (literally) sealed and sent to ensure 
that no one sees it before the proposals are reviewed.  In addition, we need an original 
signed copy of this addendum in our files.  This is part of our procurement policy. 

 
You are, however, welcome to send it to us by any service you wish.  Someone is here 
between 8:00 am and 5:00 pm Monday through Friday to accept proposals and sign if 
needed.   

 
Question 2: Is there an anticipation there may be new land rights and/or easements required for 

the construction of the new segments? 
 
Answer: Actual acquisition would not be part of this project as the development of this plan is 

more to open the dialogue with local landowners, and use their feedback and 
information to help plan the best route and other needs for the trail.  However, based on 
the current preferred route, it is likely that Mills will have to acquire some land and/or 
ROW.  

 
Question 3:  On p. 3 of the RFP, the second bullet refers to environmental, topographical, and 

land use data.  Will the consultant be responsible for obtaining original data or is 
this in reference to existing data / completed work that the consultant be responsible 
for reviewing? 
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Answer: This is mainly in reference to existing data.  We possess a good deal of this data already 
and will share it with the selected consultant.  Some is in GIS format, and some (such as 
land use) is included as part of previous plans for the city.  We believe this, along with 
other publically available data, should be sufficient for this level of planning.   However, 
you may collect any data you wish for yourselves, pending landowner permission, if it 
suits the needs of your firm’s proposal.   We can assist in gaining landowner permission 
on an as needed basis, but cannot make any guarantees.  We possess one-foot contour 
lines for the preferred route from 2020, along with hydrographic data and many other 
standard GIS layers that we are happy to share.  We will also host an on-site tour of the 
area to the selected consultant. 

 
Question 4:  Also on p. 3, the third bullet refers to coordination of landowners and stakeholder 

groups. Have relevant landowners and their contact information already been 
obtained or would the consultant be responsible for collecting this information. 
Similarly, have the referenced stakeholder groups already been identified or would 
the consultant need to identify and form these groups? 

 
Answer:  Mills staff have a significant amount of property owner contact information as well as an 

established relationship with many of the potentially impacted property owners. The 
selected consultant will not be required to obtain this information from scratch unless a 
route is recommended that differs significantly from the preferred route.  We also have 
many stakeholders already identified and the selected consultant would mainly be tasked 
with reviewing what we have done so far, making suggestions if needed, and seeking 
additional input from these groups or persons.  As with property owners, stakeholder 
contact information will be provided to the selected consultant to the best extent possible.  
Please also see question 15 for additional information. 

 
Question 5:  Is the 10-page limit to be interpreted as 10 double-sided sheets of paper (20 pages 

of content) or 10 single-sided sheets (10 pages of content)? 
 
Answer: Responses shall be 10 single-sided pages of content. 
 
Question 6: Do front and back covers, table of contents, divider pages, and cover letter count 

toward the page limit? 
 
Answer: No, these do not count toward the 10 page content limit, nor do resumes, sealed cost 

proposals, this signed addendum, or any project examples your firm wishes to provide.  
These may be included as appendices or as separate documents.  If you choose to include 
them as appendices, please also include them in your hard copy. 

 
Question 7: Two previous studies appear to have determined the preferred concepts for 

Riverfront Landing and for Robertson Hills Neighborhood Park.  These trail 
sections have conceptual (10%/EPE) plans already prepared.  For clarification, 
does the current proposal extend: 
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a. From the intersection of Robertson Road at River Heights Drive to the Platte 
River Boat Ramp east of the WYO 258 Bridge over the North Platte 
River?   OR     

b. From the intersection of the trail alignment reservation at Pebble Mountain 
Drive to 538 SW Wyoming Boulevard (Natrona County Roads Bridges and 
Parks) south property line at Wyoming Boulevard?    

 
Answer: Currently the preferred route starts at the intersection of Robertson Road and River 

Heights Drive (Mills boundary) and extends into the future Mills Riverfront 
Development, which is in the general area of the boat ramp and WYO 258 bridge.  Since 
we do not yet have the riverfront development area designed, the exact connection can be 
discussed as part of the final scope of work and recommendations may be made further 
on this connection to the existing trail system. 

 
Question 8: What level of engineering is desired?  

a. 10% = Conceptual / Early Preliminary Engineering / Schematic Design 
“SD” (A line on a map) 

b. 10-35% = Preliminary / Design Development “DD”  (This phase entails 
review of plats and easements, terrain maps, slopes etc. to determine a 
refined alignment.  It often includes a survey.) 

c. 35% - 100% = / Construction Engineering / Construction Design 
“CD”  (This phase takes the preferred design to final construction plans 
suitable for bid letting.)   

 
Answer: What we are looking for at this time is closest to answer b, inching into c.  We will provide 

much of the information listed, and although a survey is not required it may be possible 
for the selected consultant to do so if they wish, pending landowner permission.  We will 
also host an on-site tour of the area to the selected consultant so any provided data can be 
field checked.  If your firm believes it can also provide any additional construction and 
design at this time, within the budget for the plan, please include that in your proposal.  
Also, see question 12 for more information in this regard. 

 
Question 9: What order of magnitude/level of detail will be required for the costing of the 

preferred route?   
 
Answer: At a minimum, we would like to see an approximate cost per linear foot of paving of the 

trail (including any recommendations the selected consultant may be able to provide on 
type of material and approximate thicknesses, all material types will be considered) and 
approximate costs of any infrastructure needs.  For example, if industry standards or 
public input dictate that we need a rest area, restroom, or certain number of benches along 
the trail then please give us a median or average cost for these (and any recommendations 
or information the selected consultant is able to provide on type, size, etc…).  Or, if the 
selected consultant recommends a particular type of crosswalk signal or markings then 
please provide us with an approximate cost for purchase and installation for the 
recommended option and of any additional options that are included. Any additional level 
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of detail is appreciated, and the more details and recommendations that can be provided 
in this respect may be a consideration in our selection. 

 
 Note:  Mills does own a portion of the land along the preferred route and any firm that 

would like to do surface or subsurface sampling will be able to do so on a limited capacity.  
This is not required but is an option if it fits your firm’s needs for this project. 

 
Question 10: Can you provide examples of the types of environmental data to be included in this 

analysis?   
 
Answer: We would like the selected consultant to, at a minimum, conduct a review of available 

data, conduct a site review, and research publically available documents to determine if 
there are any expected environmental or ground/surface water issues pertaining to the 
eventual construction of the trail.  Please plan to include a summary of this review and 
any findings in the report.  At this time we do not need a full-scale environmental 
assessment, nor do we have one available for review.  If it is determined that a full 
environmental assessment is necessary we would appreciate some guidance on the matter. 
We will provide all the data we have available to us for this review, along with local 
knowledge of the area.  Any additional data the selected consultant would like to collect 
and review will be supported to the best of our abilities.  Data to be included in the final 
plan will be determined as part of the final scope of work.   

 
Question 11: Is survey information available and if not, is survey required as part of this scope?   
 
Answer: We have one-foot contours available for this area from 2020, and they can be provided 

to the selected consultant.  A survey is not required as part of the scope.  However, if 
any firm prefers to do their own topographic (or any type of) survey please state that in 
your proposal and be prepared to conduct it within the financial confines of the project or 
at your own expense. 

 
Question 12: What level of plans does the MPO/Town of Mills want to see at the end of the 

feasibility study? 
 
Answer: In question 8, we mentioned 10-35%.  In reality, we did not necessarily have a specific 

percentage in mind.  We have the resources to have a trail constructed.  We also have an 
ongoing transportation goal of creating safe, multi-modal transportation amenities, and 
we have a preferred trail route.  We are interested in how much of the in-between you can 
do for us within the financial confines of the project.  If your firm thinks it can get us to 
final design within those confines, please put that in your proposal.  If you think we 
missed an integral part of the planning process, include that.  The budget for the plan is 
included in the RFP.   
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Question 13: What is the priority of the feasibility study?  The preliminary design, the 
environmental assessments, etc? 

 
Answer: Preliminary design, along with guidance on best practices for safe, multi-modal 

transportation as it pertains to this particular trail and determination of any issues that 
may be encountered during final engineering design and construction (and therefore need 
to be included in cost-estimates and final construction documents).  This is the main goal 
of this plan, but it can include anything else your firm is able to provide to get us closer 
to construction. 

 
Question 14: What is the typical process for the Town of Mills/MPO to gain pathway easements? 
 
Answer: The MPO does not currently have a process for this, as we are usually involved only in 

the preliminary planning phases.  Mills’ process is informal and often based on previously 
established relationships and in-person discussions. 

 
Question 15: Where the path crosses private property, have any easements been discussed with 

major property owners? 
 
Answer: Yes.  Local utility companies have been informed and so far seem to be in support of 

sharing/crossing their easements, a 10’ easement has been obtained from a housing 
developer along the proposed route, and major landowners along the preferred route have 
been in preliminary discussions with Mills staff. 

 
Question 16: Do we have the MPO permission to contact landowners for our proposal? 
 
Answer: No, we cannot support this at this point. 
 
Question 17: Is the funding for this project associated with a TAP grant? 
 
Answer: Not for this plan, no. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

End of Addendum No. 1 


